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Situated on Magnolia Avenue in Buena Vista, the 0ld Court House is an imposing
two-and-one-half-story, mansard-roof brick building, executed in five-course American bond
and set on a brick foundation. The modified Second Empire style building was constructed
in 1890,

The main (west) facade is comprised of a simply framed, glass-paned door surmounted
by a double transom containing six lights and flanked by two four-paned sidelights. The
arched doorway is covered by a pent-roof canopy, supportcd by knee braces, and contains
a central gable, The fenestration on the first two stories consists of paired and
triple~hung~sash, segmental-arched windows, the arches of which are rendered in gauged
brick. The attic story contains a central tower covered by a mansard roof and flanked
by pedimented dormers. The roof retains its original imbricated slate shingles, and the
wrought-iron roof cresting has been removed.

The novth and south elevations consist of three bays; the fenestration is identical
to that found on the main (west) facade. The attic story contains three symmetrically
positioned pedimented dorwers, identical in appearance to those found on the main facade,
The rear (east) elevation contains a small, one-story service wing, the facade of which
is pierced by minimal fenestration.

The interior contains a central-hall plan, the hall being dominated by the main
open-string stalr. The stair is composed of factory-made components, characteristic of
building practices of this period. Originally, the lower level housed the Treasurer's
Office, Mayor's Office, Office of the Clerk of Court and the courtrocr, Attorneys' offices
and the telephone exchange were situated on the second floor. The third floor served as
the local 0dd Fellow Lodge. Modifications have been made to the south rooms of the first
floor, presently being used as the public library. The relatively simple rooms retain
their original FEastlake mantels,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The period from 1889 to 1891 witnessed a land boem in the central part of
Virginia's Shenandozh Valley that contributed to the development of the area. Erected
in 1890, at the height of the "boom', the 0ld Court Hoise stands as a symbol of the
econonic and physical growth of the City of Buena Vista.

On the first day of the new year of 1891, the Riclmond Dispatch reported the follow-
ing observation:

Virginia has had a '"boem". New towns have sprung up in fields and
forests. 01ld ones have grown greatly. Where we used to have few
cities we now have many. It is an era of development of our iron and
coal lands; of the planting of new industries, and the determination to
make Virginia a manufacturing state...

The Rockbridge County News in 1889 was less sedate with its obscrvations: '"To
put it mildly, things are getting wild. Tt is not unusual for eligible building lots
to jump $100 in twenty-four hours."

The "boom'" was a direct result of the construction of the Norfolk and Western
Railroad that virtually opened up the abundantly rich resources of the Valley for
economic and environmental consumption. The potential for development was enhanced
by the discovery of substantial amounts of iron ore in the area. Supported by Northern
investors and local entrepreneurs, the "boom" reached tremendous proportions before
ending with the panic of 1893, Land development companies were establishcd, and new
towns were laid out, of which Buena Vista is a typical example,

|
1
fanaged by A. T. Barclay, the Buena Vista Company was founded in 1889 te promote
snd develop Buena Vista as an industrial center. Capital stock was issued and land l
purchased. As early as February 1889, the company was able to announce that all of its
$600,000 capital stock had been subscribed. The company's first furnace was opened and
operating by the latter part of 1830, 1In addition, the company operated steel works,
wvool and paper mills, and factories that manufactured glass, bricks, tiles and furniture,

Synonymous with the development of the industry was the growth of the town. The
population grew from 400 in 1890 to over 5,000 in 1892, By that time some 600 structures
including dwellings, churches, stores, and other buildings had been completed. Among the |
buildings constructed at this time was the main office building of the Buena Vista Company
The company directors chose the imposing Second Empire style to distinguish their build-
ing headquarters, The building style had come to characterize "boom'" town headquarters !
throughout the United States and was ultimately devived from govermmental architecture ‘.
in Washington, D. C. |

(See Continuation Sheet #1) :
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8. SIGNIFICANCE

In 1892 the Buena Vista Company sold its office building to the newly

incorporated City of Buenaz Vista for $10,000. Duriag this time the "boom" had

sloved down, and the need for a wmunicipal structure was apparent.

Following the construction of a nmew municipal building in 1971, the 01d Court
House was scheduled to be rezed. Through the efforts of interested citizens, the
building was saved from demclition. A symbol of the city's economic and municipal

gvowth, the building now houses the public library and Chamber of Comnerce,
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